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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Reynolds-Morris House is a 3 1/2 story brick structure with a low 
gabled roof and three pedimented dormers. The walls are Flemish bond with 
glazed headers, and two slightly projecting courses of bricks form decora­ 
tive beltcourses at the second and third floor levels. A heavy modillioned 
cornice and molded gutter spouts form a frame for the almost square facade* 
Prominent stone lintels, deeply scored to resemble keystoned architraves 
of individual parts are placed above all the windows. These heavy elements 
of the facade are somewhat out of date for this period when the lighter, 
delicate Federal style was being generally used in the finer houses. If 
John Reynolds built his own house, this might account for the use of 
earlier fashion. Only the entrance, with its delicate mullioned fanlight, 
slender framing pilaster and small pediment suggests the later date of 
the house.

During the latter part of the nineteenth century and early twentieth, 
various additions were made to the house. The withdrawing room to the 
right of the entrance was deepened by the addition of a bay. This exten­ 
sion was carried across the rear of the house to provide space for a hall 
and bathroom. In the rear of the north wing the first room beyond the 
kitchen was originally an open loggia. The old kitchen with its open 
fireplace was inadequate for modern living, and a new pantry and kitchen 
were added at the end of the wing. Bedrooms were built on the second and 
third floors above the kitchen addition. A two car garage and a chauffer's 
room were built after the adjoining houses were torn down in 191A.

The interior plan of the Reynolds-Morris House is an outstanding example 
of the house constructed on a double lot. When a double lot was available^ 
the front building developed into a ;mirror image of itself with a single 
hall in the middle, resulting in a plan similar to a country house. This 
type of plan is not common and the Morris House illustrates the luxurious 
result of a double lot on an urban dwelling.

Here the narrow center hall opens upon a garden. The large parlor on the ; 
right of the hall has a paneled chimney wall and a well scaled cornice with 
a Greek fret frieze which surrounds the room. The mantel has elaborate 
scrolls at either end supporting the shelf. A crossetted overmantel sur­ 
mounts the fireplace. This design is repeated in the chimney wall of the 
library to the left of the hall. Modern bookshelves were installed in the 
parlor in the new addition which also has a large french window opening 
onto the garden.

During the recent restoration, old random-width floorboards were refinished 
and the pine doors were scraped to return them to their original mahogany 
stain, a frequent practice of the 18th and 19th century to imitate real 
mahogany. Additions to the mantels on the first and second floors were 
also removed, but were allowed to remain on the third floor where there was 
a danger of damaging the old wood. The wall paper was removed as was the
first floor stair dado, believed to be of a later period. The garden
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7. Description: (1) Reynolds-Morris House

surrounding the house is not in keeping with any historic period but provides 
a pleasant surrounding which does not disturb the integrity of the architec­ 
ture to any greater degree than the initial destruction of the adjoining 
houses.

BOUNDARIES

Today the boundary of the surrounding property is as follows; beginning at 
the northwest corner at the curb line of the intersection of St. James and 
8th Streets, then east along the south curb of St. James Street to the rear 
or east property line of the house, thence south along the rear property 
line to the property line of the adjoining house on the south, then west 
along this line to 8th Street, thence north along the east curb of 8th 
Street to the point of beginning, an .area of about 40,000 square feet or 
approximately 3/4 acre.
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First floor plan of the Reynolds-Morris House, from William 
Murtagh, "The Philadelphia Row House," The Journal of the 
Society of Architectural Historians, December, 1957.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built by John and William Reynolds in 1786-87, the Reynolds-Morris House 
is one of the finest surviving original examples of a Georgian Phila­ 
delphia townhouse. The building is an L-shaped three-and-a-half story 
structure with gable roof, three dormers and high chimneys set in each 
of the end walls. Unlike most row houses of the period, this is of 
double width. The brick is laid in Flemish bond with glazed headers. A 
heavy modillioned cornice and keystoned window architraves form the most 
prominent features of exterior decoration. The central doorway has a 
pediment, fanlight, and framing pilasters which add the only note of 
lightness, relating it to the Federal Period which was then coming into 
vogue. A narrow center hall extends through the house with a large room 
on the right and a smaller parlor on the left. The original row houses 
that adjoined the Reynolds-Morris house were removed in the early 1900's, 
which has destroyed its identity as a row house. However, surrounded 
today by a garden the house remains an outstanding example of Georgian 
city architecture, recalling many of the elegant dwellings which at one 
time lined the streets of our early Republic.

HISTORY

The house was built in 1786 by John Reynolds, a brickmaker, and William 
Reynolds, a physician, on a plot of ground which was far on the outskirts 
of the developed city. All other major townhouses of th« period were 
located around Second and Third Streets in the finer residential section. 
It is likely that John Reynolds was architect and builder of the house. 
Later in the economic slump which followed the Revolutionary War, he 
overextended himself in real estate speculation and lost his house in 
1796 to Ann Dunkin at a sheriff's sale. In 1817 the house was resold to 
Luke Wistar Morris, son of Captain Samuel Morris, founder of Philadelphia 1 
First City Troop. He was a brewer and his house became a center of 
social life for the city.

Seven generations of Morrises lived in the house, buiTding several rear 
additions in keeping with the original design of the building and not 
evident from the street facade. In 1914 the Morrises tore down two 
adjoining houses built in the 19th century for members of the family and 
restored the north and south sides of the house to their original 
appearance. The interior of the house was restored during the ownership

(continued)
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8. Statement of Significance: (1) Reynolds-Morris House

of Effingham B. Morris, who died in 1955, and completed in the early 1960 f s 
when the house was owned by A. W. Ayer and Company. They used it as a 
guest house until 1968 when it was sold again as a private family residence,
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